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LEGISLATION REFERRED TO:

1. The Competition and Consumer Protection Act' 2010

2.TheCompetitionandConsumerProtection(Amendment)Act,2023

3.TheCompetitionandConsumerProtection(Tribunat)Rutes,2012

t^T:X::HJlr.rr."r, 
sorutions Limited v Brunetti construction Zambia Limited:

zo17 tHP t2149

*ru[:::::1. 
o7). Btacks Law Dictionary(7th ed.). st. paur, Minnesota: west'

d the iudgment of the Tribunal'

INTRODUCTION

ThismatterrelatestoaNoticeofAppeatbroughtbeforetheCompetitionand

consumer protection Tribunat (hereinafter 
,,the Tribunar") by Neer construction

Limited(hereinafter..theAppellant,,)againstthedecisionoftheBoardof

commissioners of the competition and consumer Protection commission

(hereinafter .,the Board") made on l0thJun e,2021' fottowing investigations by the

Competition and Consumer Protection Commission (hereinafter "the 1nd

Respondent,,)pursuanttosection4g(5)oftheCompetitionandConsumer

protection Act No.24 of Zo1o(hereinafter "the Act")' atteging that' the Appettant

was invotved in an unfair trading practice'
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RELIEF BEING SOUGHT

The APPettant PraYed that:

i.TheTribunalquashesthedecisionoftheBoardasthebasicingredientsof

unfair trading practices where not satisfied; and

ii.anassessmentofthetotalcostoftheuncompletedworkbeconductedto

ascertain the amount owed to the 1st Respondent'

3 BACKGROUND

3.lOn4thDecember,:2(JzL,the2ndRespondentreceivedacomptaintfromMs'

viotet Matata Mainza (hereinafter "the 1st Respondent") atteging that on 9th

September,2020,sheengagedtheAppettanttocompteteherunfinished

house in Lusaka's Meanwood lbex Hitt area' The 1st Respondent atteged that

apaymentofzMW235,000.00(TwoHundredandThirty-FiveThousand

ZambianKwacha)wasmadetowardsthecomptetionoffirststageworks'

which included, inter alia, p[umbing, etectricity wiring, ptastering, window

and ceiting board instattation, before proceeding to the second stage of the

project. The 1st Respondent atteged that the total duration of the works from

start to finish was eight (8) weeks for both stages' The 1st Respondent further

,attegedthatby4.hDecember,zo:2o,theworksforthefirststageofthe

project had not been compteted. The 1st Respondent thus sought assistance

from the 2nd Respondent demanding for a refund of 2MW117,050.00 (one

HundredandSeventeenThousandandFiftyZambianKwacha)fromthe
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Appettant.lnthelstRespondent,sview,theamountrepresentedfifty

percent(50%)oftheworksthatwerenotcompletedby4thDecember,2020.

3.2Fottowingreceiptofthecompl,aint,the2ndRespondentsenttotheAppettant

aNoticeoflnvestigation(hereinafter..theNotice,,)andanaccompanying

letterdatedgthDecember,2020,whichdocumentswerereceivedbythe

Appettantonl2thJanUdlY,zo2l.lThesaiddocumentsoutlinedthecomplaint

as submitted to the 2nd Respondent by the 1st Respondent' and stated a

possibte viotation of section 49(5) of the Act. Further, the tetter stated the

2nd Respondent,s mandate in the matter pursuant to section 55(4) of the Act'

Furthermore,theAppettantwasrequiredtoprovideawrittenresponseto

the Notice and the accompanying tetter within fourteen (14) days of receipt'

3.3 According tO an internal memo of even date and authored by one Brim

Lombez,aninvestigatorintheemptoyofthe2ndRespondent'on18th

January,2o2l,theAppettant,sProjectManager,oneMr.NeerajChoudhary

visited the office of the 2nd Respondent' lt was reported that Mr' Choudhary

submitted during the meeting that the 1't Respondent did not inform the

Appettantaboutthecomptaintbeforereportingthemattertothe2nd

Respondent. Mr. choudhary further submitted that the Appettant onty

became aware of the comptaint uPon receipt of the Notice on 12th January'

zoz1. Furthermore, Mr. Choudhary requested that the Appettant be given an

1 5thSeptemb er, 2021, PP'23'241 CCPC, Record of Proceedings'
2lbid., PP.25-26
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opportunitytoinspectthesubjectpremisesandaddressatltheissuesraised

bythelstRespondentinthecomplainttothe2ndRespondent.

3.4 on 22nd January, 2021,3 Brim Lombe authored another internal memo to the

2nd Respondent in which it was stated that another meeting was hetd with

the 1st Respondent and the Appettant at the 2nd Respondent's office'

Subsequently,arecordofminuteswasproducedandfurnishedtothe

Parties.

3.5 2NDRESPONDENT'S FINDINGS FOLLOWING INVESTIGATION OF THE COTVTPLAINT

3.6 On 27th January, 2021, the 2nd Respondent through its investigator', Brim

LombevisitedthelstRespondent,spremisestocarryoutphysicalinspections

in order to verify the attegations of the 1st Respondent' The physicat meeting

reveated that:a

i.Wiringforsecuritytightsconsistingoftwe[ve(12)pointsandonepoint

forthegeyserwasnotinstatted.Furtheracabtefromflatone(1)to

ftattwo(2)formeterseparationwasnotinstalled;

ii.Manholecoverswerenotinstalledonthree(3)manholesandthe

eighteen (18) meter sewer pipe was not connected;

iii.Atuminumwindowsandburglarbars-holesthatweresupposedto

drain rain water were pl'astered together with the aluminum windows,

3 ccPc, Record of Proceedings, lSthSeptember, 202,t , pp.27-29

4lbid, PP.30-31
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causingrainwatertoseepthroughthehouse.Thewindowswerenot

openingpropertyandtwo(2)ofthebathroomwindowshadbroken

windowpanes.Thephysicatinspectionalsorevealedthatthematerial

usedontheburgtarbarswastoosoftandduetothisthebarswere

shakingeasity.Revealsonthewindowswerealsonotdoneandcracks

couldvisibtybeseenonthewattsofthehouse;and

iv.Ceitingboard-thecorniceswereseparatingfromthewa[[sandthe

sunken rhino board ceiting had visibte cracks'

3.7 ln view of the foregoing, the 2nd Respondent produced a Pretiminary Report

in March 2021, which recommended that the Appetlant breached section

49(5) of the Act as it faited to comptete works on the 1st Respondent's

unfinished house within a reasonabte time'

4I3tRESPoNDENT,sREsPoNsEToTHEPRELIMINARYREPoRT

4.1 The lst Respondent did not submit any response to the 2nd Respondent,s

Pretiminary RePort'

APPELLANT,SREsPoNsEToTHEPRELIMINARYREPoRT

5.1 ln a Letter dated 11th March,2021, the Appettant submitted through its

lawyersJaphetZutuAdvocatesthattheAppettantperformedtheworksto

the required standard and did not accept tiabitity' lt was further submitted

that there was no justifiabte basis upon which the 1st Respondent was

entitted to a refund of ZMW117,O50.oo (one Hundred and seventeen
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Thousand Zambian

contractual amount

Thousand Zambian

comptetion.

DECISION OF THE BOARD

6.lThe2ndRespondentproceededtofinatiseitsinvestigationsandreferredthe

matter to the Board for adjudication. The Board, at its adjudication meeting

hetd on 10th June , 2021, considered the matter, and conctuded that the

facts and the evidence in the case had shown that the Appettant had engaged

inunfairtradingpracticesandwasthusinviolationofsection4g(5|ofthe

Act. The Board thus directed that;

i. The Appettant be fined 0.5% of its annual turnover for viotating section

4g(5|oftheActinaccordancewithsection49(6|oftheAct.

ii. The Appettant refunds the 1't Respondent the 2MW117,050'00 (one

Hundred and Seventeen Thousand and Fifty Zambian Kwacha) for

incomptete works at the house within ten (10) days of receipt of the

Boarddecisioninaccordancewithsection4g(7)oftheAct.

iii. The Appettant submits its tatest annual books of accounts to the

commission for catcutation of the actuat fine within thirty (30) days of

receipt of the Board decision in accordance with section 5(d) of the

Act.

Kwacha) amounting

of 2MW235,000.00

Kwacha), esPeciattY

to fiftY Percent (50%) of the

(Two Hundred and ThirtY'Five

that works were done to near
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THE APPEAL

T.llnviewoftheBoard'sdecisiontheAppettantfitedbeforetheTribunata

Notice of Appeat and Heads of Argument dated 18th August' 2021' and in

response, the 2nd Respondent fited a Notice of Grounds in opposition to the

Grounds of Appeat on 15th septembe r, 202L Thereafter, the Appettant fited

a tist of authorities and sketeton arguments on 11th March ' 2022' The

Appettant further submitted another tist of authorities and sketeton

arguments on 13th April, 2022. Furthermore, on 21st Apri[, 2022 the Znd

RespondentsubmittedatistofauthoritiesandaresponsetotheAppellant,s

submission. Finatl,y, on 6th May,2022the Appettant fited a repLy to the 2nd

ResPondent's submission'

GROUNDS OF APPEAL

8.1 ln appeating the Board's decision, the Appetlant advanced the foltowing

grounds of aPPeat:

i) Thot the commission erred in law and in fact, when it awarded the

respondent compensation for breach of due core and skill ond within a

reasonable time on the bosis that the work was not completed 21 days

following the ogreed completion dote'

ii) That the commission erred in low and in foct when it found that the

Appettant hod engaged in unfair business practices despite having not

considered the evidence in totatity in rendering its decision' when the

record shows thot the decision was on exoct replico of thelst
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respondent,s allegations and that the commission faited to consider the

evidence in its totalitY'

iii)That the commission erred in low ond in fact when it found the Appellant

tioble for unfair trading without toking into consideration the amount of

work thot wos done ond the circumstances that tead to the delay in

execution of the full controct'

1ST RESPONDENT'S REPLY TO THE GROUNDS OF APPEAL

g.1 There was no response to the grounds of appeat from the 1st Respondent'

2ND RESPONDENT'S REPLY TO THE GROUNDS OF APPEAL

10.1 The 2nd Respondent fited its notice in opposition to the ground of appeal on

15th SePtember, 2022 as fottows;

i. The record wilt show that the board did not aword compensotion to

the lrt respondent for breoch of due core and skitl on the basis that

the workwos not compteted within the agreed 2ldays'

ii. controry to the Appetlant's assertion in ground 2, the 2'd Respondent

was on firm ground when it found thot the Appetlant had engaged in

unfoirtradingpracticesfornon-completionofthework,ondfurther,

therecordwillshowthotthecommissiondidconsideralltheevidence

before rendering its decision'
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iii.The 2nd Respondent wos on firm ground when it found the Appellant

tiabte for unfoir troding practices os the record will show' no reosons

forthedetaytoexecutethefullcontractwereadvoncedbythe

Appeltant during the investigotion'

APPEAL HEARING

when the appea[ came up for hearing, counsel for the Appettant sought the

guidanceoftheTribunalconsideringthata[[documentsweresubmitted,andthat

they were merety waiting for the judgment. Furthermore, counsel for the

Appettant upon being guided that we woul,d proceed with the hearing by the

Tribunat retied on the documents atready submitted'

APPELLANT'S SU BMISSIONS

12.1 The fottowing were the submissions of the Appettant'

Ground one

That the commission erred in tow and in fact, when it oworded the respondent

compensation for breach of due care skill and within a reasonable time on the

basis that the workwas not completed 21 days fotlowing the agreed completion

date.

12.? counsel for the Appettant stated that ground one (1) deatt with the awarding

ofcompensationtothel'tRespondentforbreachofduecareandskittand

faiture to execute the contract within a reasonabte time' ln her opening

submissions, counsel for the Appettant submitted that where there was a

12
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suspicion of breach of due care and skitt due to undue detay, there must be

evidence ctear[y demonstrating the breach as guided by the supreme court

in the case of Mwenya and Another v Kapingas, where the Supreme court

stated as fottows:

,,tt may be said that time is essentiat firstly, if the parties

expresslystiputat,einthecontractthatitshottbeso;secondly,

ifinacosewhereoneportyhosbeenguiltyofunduedelay,he

isnotifiedbytheotherthatunlessperformanceiscompleted

within a reasonoble time the controct will be regorded as at

end;andlostly,ifthenotureofthesurroundingcircumstances

orofthesubjectmokesitimperotivethattheagreeddate

shoutd be PreciselY observed" '

12.3CounselfortheAppetlantalsomadereferencetosection4g(5\oftheAct

which states as fottows;

,,Completion should be within a reosonobte time or if a specific

time wos agreed, within a reasonabte period around the agreed

time.

counse[ for the Appettant contended that notwithstanding the fact that the comptetion

was to be within two (2) months from the date of the contract, the 2nd Respondent fetl

into error when it hetd that the contract between the Appettant and the 1't Respondent

was conditionat in respect of the time of comptetion' She stated that on the contrary'

5 SCJ No.4 of 1998
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there was nothing in the contract that stated or indicated that time was of the essence'

Counsel for the Appettant further submitted that the 2nd Respondent's decision based on

time was not in order as what was being regarded as reasonabte time was subjective'
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12.4 Counsel for the Appettant averred that work didn't necessarity need to be

compteted on or before the agreed date but rather within a reasonabte

period especiatl,y that the contract did not expressty state that time was of

the essence. Additionatty, she argued that in the case at hand there were

extenuating circumstances known to both parties that caused the detay' One

of which was the state that the structure was in, with watts that were not

straight and as such the Appettant had to correct these watts prior to

commencing its work. Further, some of the openings were betow the

standard size of opening and the Appettant had to break and bring the

oPenings to the right standards'
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Counsel for the Appettant atso submitted that the Appettant had communicated

these detays to the 1st Respondent and indicated that it was ready to commence

works on the second stage of the contract as it was compteting the works in the

first stage of the contract. counsel submitted that despite the Appettant's

communication, the 1st Respondent did not honor her end of the bargain and as

such,theAppettantdidnotcommencetheworksinthesecondstage.She

submittedthattheAppettantalsolaterdiscoveredthatthelstRespondenthad

engaged another contractor for the works' counset for the Appettant further

submitted regarding the findings by the 2nd Respondent that the Appettant was in

breach of the due care and skitt when it was found that' infer alia' the ceiting

boards had visibte cracks, the cornices were detaching, and that the wiring for

twetve (12) points were not done. ln response to this' counse[ for the Appettant

referred to the case of Bolam v Friern Hospital Management in which it was

estabtished as fottows:

,,where you get a situotion, which involves the use of specialized skill

or competence, then the test of whether there hos been negligence or

not is not the test of the man on top of o ctapham omnibus becouse he

has not got this specialskitl. A mon may not possess the highest expert

skill at the risk of being found negtigent' tt is well established law that

it is sufficient to be exercising the competent skilt of on ordinory

competent man exercising that particular art" '
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12.5 Counsel for the Appettant further cited the case of Plant construction PLC

v clive Adama Associates and JHM Construction services Limited where it

was hel,d that a contractor's performance of his contract with skitl and care

of an ordinary competent contractor, witl depend on atl circumstances'

12.6 lnview of the cases cited above, counsel for the Appettant submitted that in

construction, eventuatities such as cracked ceitings occurred' she stated'

however, that they were not fatal as they coutd easity be rectified' Thus' in

the Appettant,s view, no evidence adduced by the 2nd Respondent showed

thattheactionsoftheAppettantlackedduecareandskitl.

l2.TCounsetfortheAppettantfurtherdrewtheattentionoftheTribunaltothe

attegations raised by the 2nd Respondent that the quatity of the burgtar bars

was substandard. section 18 (1) of the standards Act No' 4 of 2017 provides

that'

"ThebureaushatlpubtishoZambianNationolstandard'includingan

omendment or withdrawal of the Zombion Notionol Standard, in the

Gazette".

12.8 From the foregoing, counset for the Appettant contended that the quatity of

the burgtar bars that were used was in conformity with the standard given

by the Zambia Bureau of standards. she added that due ditigence was done'

and the material used was in accordance with the set standards' ln view of

this, counsel for the Appettant submitted that the 2nd Respondent shoutd

therefore,statewhattestswereapptiedinestabtishingthattheburglarbars
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were substandard. she further stated that the quatity of burgtar bars to be

used was discussed between the parties, as was stated in an emait exchange

between the parties.6 ln the said email, it was expressty agreed that the

quatity of the materia[ used on the burgtar bars was based on the agreement

betweenthetwo(2)partiesandthequotationwasbasedontheagreed

standard. Therefore, according to counset for the Appettant, the argument

onthequatityoftheburgtarbarscouldnotbesustained.

12.9 Lastty, counsel for the Appettant submitted that with regard to the finding

that the atuminum windows were not airtight, she stated that it was due to

wrong measurements given by the 1st Respondent which measurements the

Appettant retied on as evidenced by an emait dated 22nd October' 20207' she

further submitted that rectifying this defect was just a matter of re-

ptastering the watts and scheming around the widows to stop the leakage'

1 
ST RESPONDENT'S SUBMISSIONS

12.10 There were no submissions from the 1't Respondent'

zND RESPONDENT'S SUBMTSSIONS

12.11 ln response to the Appettant's first ground of appeat, the 2nd Respondent

averredthattherecordshowedthattheBoarddidnotawardcompensation

to the 1st Respondent for breach of due care and skitt on the basis that the

ffiSthseptembe r, 2021, p. 1 6

7 tbid., p. 18
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work was not compteted within the agreed twenty-one (21) days.8 The word

used by the Board was "refund" and not "compensation"' she argued that

the word ,refund, has been defined in Black's Law DictiotrdrY, { lthEdition,

to mean ".... the money returned to a person who overpaid"'" white the word

,compensation' has been defined as "...to make an amendatory payment to;

to recomPense (for an injury) ""'

12.12 The 2nd Respondent further referred to a case of Macnicious Mwiimba v

Airtel Networks Zambia plc and the competition and consumer

Protection Commissione, where the Tribunal stated as fottows' at page 10'

,,in consequence, we conclude thot the commission and the

Tribunalhavenojurisdictiontoowarddomagesor

compensotionassoughtbythecomploinantforwhathealleges

to hove suffered. ln so concluding, wa fottow the decision we

made in the case of Espine Hamusonde v lzwe Loans Limited ond

the Competition and Consumer Protections Commission, Appeal

No. 2Tl2lccPTtOlOtCON. tn that decision, we held thot the

commission had no iurisdiction to oword damages to or

compensationtotheAppetlant,whowasthecomplainant,and

therefore the ground of appeat before the Tribunal failed..."

12.13 Counse[ for the 2nd Respondent therefore submitted that in view of the

abovetheBoarddidnotactcontrarytothepositionoftheTribunal,asit

8 CCPC, Record of Proceedings, 1SthSeptember,2021' pp'49 and 62 para45 (ii)

e Appeat No' 2014lCCPT/015/CON
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had directed that the Appettant refunds the 1st Respondent for the work not

completedinrelationtothelstphaseoftheproject.Shefurthersubmitted

that the direction given by the Board was supported by [aw, as shown under

section 49(71which states that:

,,ln addition to the penolty stiputated under subsection (6)' the

Person or enterPrise shall -

(al within seven doys of the provision of the service concerned,

refund to the consumer the price paid for the service...,,

12.14 Counse[ for the 2nd Respondent atso submitted that the Appettant had been

consistent with the fact that it did not execute the contract within the

agreed two (2) months as expressty stated in the contract, specifically in

ctause 4 of the contract between the Appetlant and 1st Respondentlo.

Furthermore, she submitted that the physicat inspection conducted by the

2nd Respondent during its investigation estabtished the fottowing:

i. The wiring for the security tights consisting of twetve (12) points

and one (1) point for the geyser had not been instatted. cabte

running from ftat one (1) to ftat two (2) for meter separation

had not been instatted.

ii. Ptumbing- manhote covers were not put on three (3) manhotes

and the eighteen (18) meter sewer pipe was not connected

I\CCPC , Record of Proceedings, 1 Sthseptember, 2021 ' p '7
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attowing rainy water and mud to enter the waste pipes. Two (2)

shower trays were not fitted in the bathrooms'

iii. Holes that were supposed to attow rainy water to be drained

were ptastered together causing water to enter the house.

iv. Furthermore, the windows were not opening property and two

(2) windowpanes in the bathroom were broken'

v. The sunken rhino board ceiting had visibte cracks and the

cornices were separating from the watts'

12.15 In addition, counsel for the 2nd Respondent submitted that as shown in the

record of proceedings, six (6) works were supposed to be done by the

Appettant at the first stage of the project were as foltows:

i. Ptastering/externat/interna[

ii. Rhino ceiting/ timber works

iii. EtectricitY wiring

iv. Ptumbing

v. Atuminum windows

vi. Burgtar bars
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12.16 However, counsel exptained that the Appettant had argued that

eventuatities occurred to ceil,ing boards and that it was something that could

easity be repaired. ln response to this, counsel for the 2nd Respondent

submitted that this showed a [ack of care and skitt on the part of the

Appettant who was perceived by the 1st Respondent to possess knowtedge and

skitt in the construction industry. Further, she submitted that the Appettant

had argued that the instattation of twetve (12) points for the streettights and

manhole covers, works were stitt underway, but noted that this was way past

the two (2) months deadtine that was specified in the contract within which

to finish the project. Counsel for the 2nd Respondent further submitted that

the foregoing was an admission on the part of the Appettant that the findings

of the 2nd Respondent were indeed correct'

12.17 ln her finat submission, counsel for the 2nd Respondent stated that the

Board was on firm ground when it directed that the Appettant refunds the 1st

Respondent for the work not compteted, entitting the 1st Respondent to a

refund of ZMW117,O5O.OO (One Hundred and seventeen Thousand and Fifty

Zambian Kwacha).
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13 APPELLANT'S REPLY TO THE 2ND RESPONDENT'S SUBMISSIONS

13.1 Counsel for the Appettant admitted that the terminotogy used was incorrect,

as compensation and refund did not mean the same thing. However, she

maintained that it did not change the narrative of this matter, which was

that a substantive amount of work was done and as such awarding a refund

of fifty percent (50%) was unjustifiabte'

13.2 Counsel further averred that the contract was in two (2) stages and the

faiture to comptete the first phase of the contract was due to the bad state

that the structure was found in, as such the Appettant spent a lot of time

rectifying the defects, hence the detay. Furthermore, counsel averred that

the detay on the second stage was substantiatty caused by the 1st

Respondent's non-payment for the second stage of contract.

13.3 Regarding the submission above, counse[ for the Appettant submitted that

since eventuatities occurred in construction due to unforeseen

circumstances, that was why in every construction project there were

contingencies. These, according to counsel, were downside risk estimates

meant to mitigate risks and were hetd in reseryes to deat with unforeseen

circumstances. It was further submitted that it was unfair for the 2'd

Respondent to base their argument of a [ack of care and skitt without

effectivety addressing issues in construction works.
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13.4 Concerning the instattation of security tights and manhote covers and the two

(2) months pe.riod that had etapsed from the date of submitting that works

were underway, counsel for the Appettant admitted that there was a detay.

However, counsel for the Appettant stated that the detay was due to the fact

that the Appettant's managing director had travetted out of the country for

an emergency and his absence was communicated to the 1st Respondent prior

to his travet. Counsel for the Appettant further submitted that despite this,

at[ materiats for works that had not been compteted were purchased and

detivered to site, awaiting instattation.

13.5 Counsel for the Appettant further averred that the refund of ZMW117, 050'00

(One Hundred and Seventeen Thousand and Fifty Zambian Kwacha) was

unjustifiabte as ninety-five percent (95%) of the works in the first stage had

atready been done. She submitted that the cited detays in fitting twetve (12)

tight points, manhote covers, ptastering the hotes for rainy water and cracks

in the ceiting woutd not amount to zMw117,O50.OO (One Hundred and

Seventeen Thousand and Fifty Zambian Kwacha)'

Grounds two and three

13.6 Counset for the Appetlant submitted that she wished to argue grounds two

and three together as they retated to the same issue. She submitted that the
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2nd Respondent based its findings of unfair business practices on section 45 of

the Act and sectio n 12 of the Competition and Fair'Trading Act1l.

13.7 lnview of the provisions cited above, counsel for the Appettant submitted

that it was evident that unfair trading inctuded misrepresentation, fatse

presentation of a good or service, non-comptiance with the main standard

and causing injury to a consumer. lt was therefore, her position that the

Board faited to property direct itsetf when it hetd that the Appettant had

engaged in unfair business practices, when the ingredients necessary to

render an act unfair were not satisfied. ln her view, the non'comptetion of

the works was because of the poor workmanship performed by the previous

contractor, which position had been stated in an atteged exculpatory letter

sent to the 2nd Respondent on 25thJanuary, 2021, and faiture by the 1st

Respondent to make payments for the second phase of the works. She stated

that this was despite timety communication by the Appettant that it was

ready to commence with the works. Counsel for Appettant submitted that

this was evidenced by an email dated TthNovember, 202012, in which the

Appettant stated that ten (10) days prior to that emait, parties had agreed

that the second phase of works woutd commence after payment for the

second phase of the contract had been made. Therefore, the second phase

@bia(Repeated).TheTribuna[,however,notesthattheCompetitionand
rair-iiading Act chapier +ll or the tawi of Zambia was repeated by the Act. Therefore, the reference

to ine ,"p"it"d taw witt have no bearing on the decision of the Tribunat.
1zccPc, itecord of Proceedings, l5thSeptember, 2021 , p'16
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of the contract coutd not be commenced since payment had not been made'

Furthermore, Counsel stated that the lstRespondent engaged another

contractor before the Appettant commenced the works in the second phase

of the project, to carry out the works stiputated in the second phase of the

contract.

13.8 ln conctuding their submissions on this matter, counsel for the Appettant

submitted that it was essentiat for a party to demonstrate that it had

performed its obtigations under the contract and was entitled to enforce it.

she submitted that the 1st Respondent contributed to the detay.

ij.9 Counsel for the Appettant, therefore, submitted that the attegations of unfair

trading practice were unsubstantiated, as a substantive amount of work

according to the first phase was done and the house was in a habitabte state

as coutd be seen in photos marked "NCl"and'NC26"' To buttress her

argument, counset for the Appettant cited a case of MacCormick v Grogan

and stated that equity did not attow statute to be used as an instrument of

fraud as such an act woutd resutt in unjust enrichment.

13.10 ln her final submission, counsel referred to section 3 (2) of the Law Reform

(Frustrated Contract) Act13, which states that:

"(2)Attsumspaidorpayabtetoanypartyinpursuanceofthe

controct before the time when the porties were so discharged

(in this Act referred to os "the time of discharge")shall, in the

13 CAP 73 of the Laws of Zambia
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caseofsumssopoid'berecoverablefromhimasmoney

receivedbyhimfortheuseoftheportybywhomthesumswere

paid, be recoverable from him as money received by him for the

useofthepartybywhomthesumswerepoid'and'inthecose

of sums so payabte' ceose to be so payable'

Providethat,ifthepartytowhomthesumsweresopaidor

payableincurredexpensebeforethetimeofdischargeinorfor

thepurposeoftheperformonceofthecontract,thecourtfroY'

ifitconsidersitjusttodosohavingregardtoallthe

circumstances of the cose , allow him to return or as the cose

moybe,recoYerthewholeoronyportofthesumssopoidor

poyable,notsobeingonamountinexcessoftheexpensesso

incurred".

Counsel for the Appettant submitted that substantial performance of the

contract was done, atthough not futt and complete performance, it was

sufficient to satisfy an agreement especiatty that performance, in good faith'

was made. Further, counsel for the Appettant stated that detay did not

amount to breach of contract or unfair trading especiatty that this detay was

due to extenuating circumstances and in part due to the 1st Respondent's

faiture to hotd her end of the bargain. counsel for the Appettant, therefore'

prayed that the decision of the Board be quashed as the basic ingredients of

unfair business where not satisfied. Further, counsel for the Appettant
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prayed that an assessment of the damage be conducted to avoid unjustly

enriching the 1st ResPondent'

14 1ST RESPONDENT'S SUBI'IISSIONS

14.1 There were not submissions from the 1st Respondent'

15 2ND RESPONDENT'S SUBMISSIONS

15.1 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent submitted that contrary to the Appettant's

assertion in ground two, the Board was on firm ground when it found that

the Appettant engaged in unfair trading practice for non-comptetion of the

work, and further, that the record showed that the Board did consider atl

evidence before rendering its decision. she further submitted that the Board

was on firm ground when it found the Appettant tiabte for unfair trading

practices as the record showed no reason for the detay to execute the

contract in futt were advanced by the Appettant during the investigation'
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15.2 Counset for the 2nd Respondent submitted that the 2nd Respondent's mandate

as stated in the Act was, among others, to safeguard and promote

competition, protect consumers against unfair trade practices' and

investigate unfair trading practices and unfair contract terms and impose

sanctions aS may be necessary. ln this regard, counsel for the 2nd Respondent

submitted that the 2nd Respondent protects consumers through carrying out

investigations of unfair trading practices' She emphasised that a trading

practice witt be deemed unfair under section 45 of the Act if:

(a) lt misleods consumers.

(b)ltcompromisesthestandardofhonestyandgoodfaithwhichan

enterprise can reasonably be expected to meet; or

(c) tt ptaces pressure on consumers by use of harassment or coercion'

And thereby distorts, or likely to distort, the purchasing decisions of

consumers,

15.i Counsel for the 2nd Respondent further stated that the above, however, did

not impty that offences listed under part vll of the Act could be categorised

as unfair trading practices and gave an exampte of the viotation that the

Appettant was found to have committed under section 49(51 of the Act'

counsel for the 2nd Respondent added that the provisions of the Act made it

mandatory for an enterprise or a person who had been engaged in offering a

service to a consumer to exercise reasonable care and skitt as it detivered

the service. she submitted that an enterprise had a contractuat obtigation to

carry out a service with reasonabte care and skitt and that created a
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performance obtigation which was anatogous to the standard of care in

negtigence. she emphasised that it was an imptied duty to exercise the [evet

of skitt and care expected of another reasonabty competent member of the

profession.

15.4 The2nd Respondent's counsel atso submitted that in view of the above, the

Appettant being in the fietd of construction was reasonabty expected to be

competent in its fietd, therefore, the Appettant shoutd have ensured that

worksofthefirstphasewereperformedwithreasonabtecareandskit[.

counsel added that the evidence on record suggested otherwise. counsel

cited the case of Southern Cross Motors v Competition and Consumer

protection Commission14, at page 14 of judgement, where the Tribunal

discussed the concept of reasonabteness by stating the fottowing:

,,..., the concept of reasonableness is quite a nebulous concept

in common low. The generol rule is that performance of o

contract must be precise and exact. That is, o party performing

on obtigotion under o contract ond exactly to the stondard

required by the contract. sometimes the standard may be

strict, for instance in the case of stotutory implied terms of

quatity in controcts for sole ond suppty of goods' Whether the

oltegedperformoncesatisfiesthiscriterionisaquestiontobe

answeredbyconstruingthecontractsoastoseewhatthe

14 2013lCCPT/ooz/coN
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porties meont by performonce ond then applying the

oscertained focts to thot construction, to see whether thot

which hos been done corresponds to which wds promised"'"

15.5 Counsel for the Znd Respondent submitted that the contract between 1st

Respondent and the Appettant was ctear on terms of duration of the contract

as wetl as the type of works that were to be executed. she further submitted

that by the Appettant's own admission, the project was not compteted within

the stiputated two (2) months as stated in the contract, neither did the

Appettant comptete the work by the time of investigation by the 2nd

Respondent. Furthermore, counsel for the 2nd Respondent submitted that the

Appettant was shifting btame on the previous contractor when the facts in

issue were directty retated to works that were performed by the Appettant'

ln the Appettant's sketeton arguments, the Appettant admitted to not

compteting the works for the first stage of the project and argued that the

cracks in the ceiting board coutd be repaired as they were "eventuatities"'

tn counsel for the 2nd Respondent's view, this was faiture on the part of the

Appettant to perform its obtigation under the contract at the standard

required of the Appettant and at the agreed time specified in the contract

or within reasonabte time around the agreed time'

15.6 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent further averred that atthough the Appettant

had argued that the 1st Respondent contributed to the detay of the project'

it was her view that the Appettant, being the one possessed with the

construction skitts, ought to have known that the project woutd not be
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compteted within the agreed time. Furthermore, the Appettant knew the

exact works that needed to be done in the first stage of the project' but

instead waited for the 1st Respondent to comptain about the non-comptetion

of works. counsel for the 2nd Respondent submitted that this was ctear

negtigence on the part of the Appettant and contrary to this Tribunat's

emphasis on enterprises providing high quatity services to consumers' she

fortified her position by citing the Southern Cross Motors case' supra' at

page 16 of the Judgment where this Tribunal observed as fottows:

"we would also like to make a general observation obout the

levels of service detivery in the country. we would like to urge

service providers of their duty to provide high quality services

andtoberesponsibtetotheneedsofConsumers,,.

15.7 Counse[ for the 2nd Respondent submitted on the aspect of the Appettant

citing repeated taw which the Tribuna[ has atready addressed' She atso

submitted that the Appettant's submission that the non'comptetion of the

work was because of the poor work done by the contractor that buitt the

structure, which position was not communicated to the 2nd Respondent

during investigations, or in the [etter from the Appettant's lawyersl5, was

merety an afterthought on the part of the Appettant'

15.8 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent atso drew the Tribunat's attention to e-mail

communications between the Appettant and the 1st Respondent and stated

1 5CCPC, Record of Proceedi ngs' 1 Sthseptember, 7021' pp' 35'47
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that e-maits showed that a meeting was hetd between the Appettant and the

1rt Respondent at which meeting the 1't Respondent raised a number of

concerns regarding the works done by the Appettant' she submitted that as

evidenced by the emaits, the Appettant committed to work on the 1st

Respondent's concerns but did not fottow through with its commitment and

continued to triviatise the extent of the poor service rendered to the 1st

Respondent. she argued that this was evident from the persistence on the

part of the Appettant in its submissions during the investigation and on

appeal, that the Appettant coutd repair and comptete the works, despite the

1st Respondent having given the Appettant an opportunity to do so'

15.9 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent submitted that atthough the Appettant had

argued that no evidence was taken into consideration, the record witl show

that meetings were hetd with the Appetlant, 1st Respondent and }nd

Respondent and that the Appettant's submissions were taken into

consideration. Furthermore, counse[ for the 2nd Respondent submitted that

the 2nd Respondent visited the premises in question to assess the works done

and prove or disprove the 1tt Respondent's attegations'16 She submitted that

the evidence was taken into consideration and by the Appettant's own

admission to the extent that the works were not compteted within the

specifiedtimeandthattherewassti[[someworkthatneededtobedone

with the wiring, ptumbing, windows, burgtar bars and ceiting board'

Furthermore, she submitted that no reasons were advanced by the Appettant

ffil SrhSeptemb er, 202'r, pp.32-3g
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forthedetayincomptetingtheprojectlTandtheAppettantinsteadsuggested

resolvingthematteramicabty,withoutadmittingitswrongdoing.

15.10 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent cited the case of Blyth v Birmingham

Waterworks CompanYls where the court stated that negtigence was the

omission to do something which a reasonabte man' guided upon those

considerations which ordinarity regutate the conduct of human affairs' would

do,ordoingsomethingwhichaprudentandreasonablemanwouldnotdo.

15.11 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent submitted that Btyth estabtished the

appropriatetestsforthebehaviorofthegeneralpubticandnotforthe

behavior of members of a more timited group, who have or hotd themsetves

out as having speciatist skitts such as architects or engineers' she submitted

that in the Bolam case, sttpro' the court refined the test estabtished in the

Btyth case in order to accommodate speciatist skitts and the court apptied

the fottowing test:

'... where you get o situation, which involves the use of

some speciatist skilt or competence, then the test of whether

therehasbeennegligenceornotisnotthetestofthemonon

the top of a Ctaphom omnibus because he hos not got t'his

speciatskill.Amanmoynotpossessthehighestexpertskillat

the risk of being found negtigent lt is well estoblished law that

ffi,1 Sthseptemb er, 2021, p.47

te 114S6)11 Ex Ch 78
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it is sufficient to be exercising the ordinary skill of an ordinary

competent man exercising that porticular art"

15.12 Counsel for the 2nd Respondent finatty argued that the Appettant faited to

provide a service to the 1st Respondent with reasonabte care and skitt and

within the specified time of two (2) months and within reasonabte time

aroundtheagreedtime.lnviewofthis,counselsubmittedthattheBoard

wasonfirmgroundwhenitfoundthattheAppettanthadviotatedSection

49(5) of the Act, and thereby awarding the 1st Respondent a refund of

zMw117,O5O.OO (One Hundred and seventeen Thousand and Fifty Zambian

Kwacha), in accordance with section 4g(7)(a) of the Act' Counse[ conctuded

thattheappeattackedmeritandshouldbedismissed.

16 APPELLANT'S REPLY TO THE 2Nd RESPONDENT'S SUBMISSIONS

16.1 Counse[ for the Appettant, in reptying to the 2nd Respondent's submission on

ground two and three, submitted as betow'

16.2 White counsel for the Appticant agreed that the 2nd Respondents mandate

was, among others, to safeguard and promote competition by protecting

consumers against unfair trading practices, she submitted that in as much as

the taw conferred that duty on the 2nd Respondent, that duty must be

exercised with fairness. She further submitted that att circumstances ought

tohavebeentakenintoconsiderationbeforearrivingatadecision.

Furthermore,regardingtheoffencestistedinpartVlloftheAct,counselfor

the Appetlant submitted that these offences coutd not be categorised as
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unfair trading practices. she argued that the acts or omissions of the

Appettant did not constitute unfair trading practices as provided under

section 45(5) of the Act'

16.3 Counsel for the Appettant atso submitted that the 1st Respondent was not

misted in any way nor was there any compromise of the standard of honesty

and the Appettant acted in good faith. she added that the 1't Respondent

was in no way put under pressure by harassment or coercion' As such counsel

for the Appettant submitted that the ingredients needed to constitute an

offence of unfair trading practice were not satisfied' ln this regard' counsel

arguedthattheAppettantperformeditsdutywithcareandskiltand,

therefore, coutd not be discredited based on unforeseen circumstances'

16.4 Counse[ for the Appettant further submitted that the Appettant possessed the

required knowledge, skit[ and attitude needed to perform its duty

successfutty and the minor hiccups faced during the course of its engagement

coutd not warrant incompetence. she posited that performance indicators

assessed competence and from the substantive work done by the Appellant,

it coutd not be said to have been incompetent' ln view of this she submitted

thatthe2ndRespondent,sa[legationswereunfounded.

16.5 ln addition, counset for the Appettant submitted that the Appettant denied

the assertions made by the 2nd Respondent in its entirety and that most of

the work had been done to the structure which was not part of the contract

before proceeding to commence the works as per contract' Furthermore'
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counsel for the Appettant argued that contrary to the 2nd Respondent'S

attegations that it did not indicate the 1't Respondent contribution to the

detay in its initiat argument, she submitted that the Appettant had engaged

the 1st Respondent on how works were progressing'1e She stated that the

emait on record ctearty showed that the Appettant had indicated why there

was a detay and that the communication was attributing the detay to the

bent walts which needed to be ptastered twice by the Appettant' She argued

that this was necessary to put the structure in good condition before

proceeding with the works'

16.6 Counsel for the Appettant further submitted that the Appettant hetd meetings

with the 1st Respondent after an emai[ was sent to the 1st Respondent

communicating the progress that had been made as at 22nd october'2020'

she submitted that the 1st Respondent raised a concern with the Appettant

over the detay of the works and that the Appettant exptained what caused

the detay and assured the 1st Respondent that works were underway'

Additionatty, that the Appettant informed the 1st Respondent of the need to

commence the second stage of the works and requested for payment' which

was not made.

16.7 Counsel for the Appettant submitted concerning evidence gathered by the

2nd Respondent. counsel argued that the Appettant's contention was not

over the meetings hetd and recorded, but the decision made by the 2nd

ffi1 5thseptemb er, zoz1, p -17
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Respondent to award the 1st Respondent a refund of ZMW117'050'00 (one

Hundred and seventeen Thousand and Fifty Zambian Kwacha) without

considering the amount of work that was done by the Appettant. She further

argued that in so far as the contract was not executed futty, the amount of

work done coutd not amount to fifty percent (50%) of the works'

16.8 ln her final submission, counsel for the Appettant intimated that in the

Appettant,s atteged excutpatory letter sent to the 2nd Respondent in January'

zozl,reasons for the detay were advanced and that the request to have the

worksdonewasmade.Additionatly,thereasonsforthedetaywerealso

advanced during the meetings that were hetd with the parties' ln view of

this, counset for the Appettant submitted that the Appettant entirety denied

the attegation that it faited to perform its work with reasonabte care and

skitt.

17 CONSIDEMTION OF THE MATTER

lT.lTheTribunalhasconsideredthesubmissionsandskeletonargumentsfrom

both parties, and the Record of Proceedings' Based on this' the fottowing

facts are not in disPute:

i. There was a contract between the Appettant and 1st Respondent

which defined the terms and conditions of engagement'
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The 1st Respondent made a payment of ZMW235,OO0.o0 (Two Hundred

and rhirty-Five Thousand Zambian Kwacha) to the Appettant for the

first stage of the contract, according to the agreed terms of the

contract.

TheAppettantdidnotexecuteworkstothelstRespondent,s

expectation, nor did it comptete the works'

Thel,tRespondenttodgedacomplainttothezndRespondent

hightightingherdissatisfactionwiththeAppet[ant,sperformanceof

the contract. The 2nd Respondent carried out the due process of

investigation and its Board rendered a decision'

The Appetl,ant appeated to this Tribunat to set aside the decision of

the Board made on 1Oth June 2021, wherein the Board hetd that the

Appettant viotated section 49(5) in accordance with section 49(6) (d)

of the Act.

18 TRIBUNAL'S DECISION

Ground one

1g.1 That the Board erred in law and in fact, when it awarded the 1st Respondent

compensationforbreachofduecareskittandwithinareasonabletimeon

the basis that the work was not compteted twenty'one (21) days fottowing

the agreed comPtetion date'

ii.

iii.

lv.
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18.2 From the outset, the Tribunal wishes to state that that the Board did not

award compensation to the 1st Respondent for breach of due and skitt on the

basis that work was not compteted within the agreed contract periods'

counsel for the Appettant in arguing the first ground of appeat used the word

'compensation' instead of 'refund" a mistake which counsel for the 2nd

Respondent hightighted in her submissions and went further to define and

differentiatethetwowordsandtheirdiversemeaningsinthiscontext.ln

her repty counsel for the Appettant acknowtedged the mistake made in their

submissions and indicated that the word they shoutd have used in this

context was 'refund' and not 'compensation"

1g.3 Having considered the evidence in the Record of Proceedings, and the submissions

of the parties, it is ctear that the basis of the dispute between the parties is a

contract. According to Btack's Law dictionary, 7th Edition, o contract is an

agreement between two or more porties creoting obligations that are enforceable

or otherwise recognizable at law. This means the agreement creates terms'

conditionsandobtigationsthatthepartiesshouldabidebyforthedurationofthe

contract. Generalty, a breoch of contract occurs when o contract has gone

unfutfitled or when one of the parties neglects their responsibitities as outlined

in the agreement20. contrary to counset's assertion that there was no breach of

contract, it is the Tribunat's view that a breach of the contract occurred' ln the

caseofTransactionalPaymentSolutionsLimitedvBrunelliConstruction

isited on 20-03-2024 at 21 '00hrs CAT
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Zambia Limited2l, the High Court, at page J7, referred to the learned author of

Law of contract, P. Richards, on the effect of non-performance of a binding

contract who states as fottows;

"Where o person foils to perform their side of the controct then subject

to the mitigating foctors, they wilt be in breach of the controct' A breach

of controct witt olways give rise to a claim in domages' no motter how

minor or serious the noture of the breach. whether an innocent party is

entitled to treat the contract as at on end, so that they can treat the

contract as dischorged, depends on whether the breach is so serious thot

it goes to the root of the contract, that is, there is a breach of o primary

obligotion".

ln casu,the terms of the contract were ctear, and they were binding on the parties

and enforceabte by taw. ln the Transactional Payment Solutions case2z, supra'

counse[ referred to the learned authors of Chitty on Contracts who state the

genera[ rute relating to the performance of a binding contract as fottows:

"The general rule is that a party to a contract must perform exactly what

he undertook to do. when an issue arises as to whether performonce is

sufficient the court must construe the controct in order to oscertain the

nature of the obtigation (which is o question of 'mixed fact and law) in

thot the court decides whether the facts of the actual performance

212017|HP12149
22lbid., p.J6
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satisfy the standard prescribed by the contractuol provisions defining

the obligation".
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1g.4 Counsel went on to submit that the parties agreed on the terms and

conditions of the contract and their performance' The ptaintiff was under

obtigation to provide internet services white the defendant was required to

payfortheservices.simitarty,inthecaseunderconsideration'theAppettant

undertook to comptete the works on the 1't Respondent's project within eight

(g) weeks, four (4) weeks each for stage one (1) and stage two (2)' Further'

the Appettant also undertook to comptete the first stage of the contract

within the cost of ZMW235,O0O.0o (Two Hundred and rhirty-Five Thousand

Zambian Kwacha) and, thereafter, proceed to carry out works in stage two

(2)ofthecontract.Therefore,thedetayofstageone(1)oftheworkscoutd

not have been caused by the 1sr Respondent's faiture to pay the agreed

amountforstagetwo(2)oftheworks,whichatthatpointhadnottaken

effect. The said works in stage two (2) of the contract were onty going to

commence after comptetion of stage one (1) of the works' The Tribunal has

establishedthattherewereagreedtermsinthecontractwhichtermsgave

parties assurance and certainty. Furthermore, the terms gave the parties

confidence and the abitity to trust the other party to futfitt their end of the

obtigations. one of the terms in the contract was time or the period of

executing the contract as stated above23' Time is a critical factor in

construction contracts. when a contract specifies a time timit for futfitting

anobtigation,failingtomeetthatdeadtineistypicattyconsidereda

.,materiat" breach of the contract. As a resutt, the other party may be

entittedtodamages.Thecontractunderconsiderationhadaspecifiedtime
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therefore, on firm ground to conctude that the Appettant did not exercise

reasonabte care and skitt in deating with the 1't Respondent and further that

the Appettant was in breach by not completing the work within the stated

contractual duration.

Grounds two and three

18.7 Grounds two (2) and three (3) retate to findings of unfair trading practices

by the APPettant.

18.8 Both counsel for the Appettant and counsel for the 2nd Respondent opted to

argue these two grounds as one as they were retated in nature.

18.9 The Appettant committed to finish an incomplete house within two months

(13th September 2O2O to 13th November 2O2Ol2a from the date of execution

in a thorough manner using the best materiats. lt was further agreed in the

contract that the Appettant was to provide weekty progress reports as we[[

as site meetings. Furthermore, the works to be compteted were itemised in

the said contract.

18.10 Section 45 of the Act provides as fottows:

"A trading practice is unfair if -

o) lt misleads consumers.

b)ttcompromisesthestandardofhonestyandgoodfaithwhichan

enterprise can reasonably be expected to meetl or

I4CCPC, Record of Proceedings, 1SthSeptember,2021, p'6
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c) lt places pressure on consumers by use of harassment or

coercion;

and thereby distorts, or is tikely to distort, the purchasing

decisions of consumers" '

Based on the provisions of the Act, unfair trading practice inctudes misteading a

consumer in retation to goods or services, and non-comptiance with the main

standard or causing injury to the consumer' The Tribunal considered at[ the

submissions and evidence presented before it and is of the considered view that

theAppettantinitsconduct,satisfiedtheingredientsofunfairtradingpractice'

The Appettant committed to detiver on its obtigations to the 1st Respondent

within a specified period of time and at a specified cost' The Appettant faited to

detiver on these terms and, therefore, misted the 1st Respondent and

compromised on the quatity, standard and generat terms that it was expected to

meet. The Appettant further satisfied the third ingredient of unfair trading

practice,asspecifiedinsection45(c)oftheAct,asitptacedtheburdenof

payment for the second stage of the contract on the 1st Respondent before

compteting the works and futfitting the first stage of the contract' as agreed by

the parties. The Appettant further stated that the faiture by the 1st Respondent

to make the payment was part of the reason why the works in stage one (1) were

detayed.
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CONCLUSION

18.1 1 The appeat faits on a[[ of the three (3) grounds'

1g.12 on the batance of law and evidence produced in the matter, the Tribunal

uphol,ds the 2nd Respondent's finding that the Appettant faited to exercise

reasonab[ecareandski[[,andbysodoingbreachedsection4g(5)oftheAct.

18.13 The Tribunat further uphotds the 2nd Respondent's finding that the

Appettant engaged in unfair trading practices'

18.14 Last[y, concerning the refund in ground one of the appea[, the Tribunat

orders that the 2nd Respondent engage a government valuer from the

department responsibte for vatuation of buitdings or a private vatuer agreed

upon by the parties, within two (2) months of receipt of this judgment' The

saidvaluerisrequiredtoascertaintheactualvalueoftherefundduetothe

1st Respondent which vatue of the works witt be the refund due to the 1st

Respondentandnottheunvatuedfiftypercent(50%)equivalentto

2MW117,050.00(oneHundredandSeventeenThousandandFiftyZambian

Kwacha).!nwhichcaseit,snotaquestionofwhetherthelstRespondent

shoutd be refunded but rather how much is to be refunded to the 1't

ResPondent in actual vatue'

18.15 Costs in the cause'

E-,r-

1 Page 45 of 46



a

AnypartyaggrievedbythisJudgmentmayappeattotheCourtofAppeatwithin

thirty (30) days of receipt of this Judgment'

*+rq day of tJ P1 7024
Dated the

-l 
r. JJ{--r. JJ,l. sianyabo
CHAIRPERSON

ffina*
ffi;BJ'turumbwe-Katongo

lrtr. O. Mulima
MEMBER

MEI{BER

\!

\

,4

VICE CHAIRPERSON

,ttn gS-ehiii la- sichizYa
MEMBER
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ofeight(8)weeksfour(4)weeksforeachstage)agreedbybothparties.

comptetion within reasonabte time onty takes effect if the contract duration

had not been specified. The Tribuna[ has noted that the Appettant in its

submissions has exhibited disregard for the time factor in the contract' ln

viewofthis,wedisagreewiththeAppettant,sargumentthattimewasnot

of the essence under the contract'

1g.5 As submitted by the 2nd Respondent, that the Appettant appeared to be

triviatizing their non-performance of the contract' The Appettant in its

capacity as a contractor had the responsibitity to assess the project during

itsptanningstageandadvisethectientaccordingly.FurthertheAppettant

ought to have inspected in anticipation of any potentiat modifications to the

contract based on the state of the existing buitding' ln this case' a site survey

shoutd have been conducted to ascertain the state of the buitding prior to

embarkingonanynewworks.Additiona[ly,theAppetlantoughttohave

engagedinc[earcommunicationwiththelstRespondentwhich

communication shoutd have hightighted the chattenges encountered on site

and how they woutd to affect the contract in terms of time' cost' and quality'

for avoidance of anY doubt'

18.6 ln view of the foregoing, the Tribunal finds that the 2nd Respondent fotlowed

the due process of investigation in conctuding the matter and thoroughty

considered the factors surrounding the matter' The 2nd Respondent was

ffi1 Sthseptemb er, 2021, p.6
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